
 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  

FOR THE PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT OF 1024 FULTON STREET 

Addendum # II 

Release Date: May 1, 2025  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The following is a list of responses to questions submitted by prospective respondents to the RFP for the 

Purchase and Development of 1024 Fulton Street, available here: https://esd.ny.gov/doing-business-

ny/requests-proposals/purchase-and-development-1024-fulton-street-rfp  

 

Q&A Matrix  

 

No. Proposed Revision  Answer 

1 

What is the maximum building height that 
can be facilitated through the General Project 
Plan (GPP)?  
 

As stated in RFP Section III B, proposals for the Site may 
deviate from as-of-right zoning to maximize the 
number of affordable housing units. Building height, 
bulk, and massing will be evaluated holistically, and 
should reflect design quality, feasibility, and alignment 
with community goals. Proposals should include a 
minimum of 100 units. The proposed building height 
should reflect cost-effective construction methods that 
align with NYS Homes and Community Renewal (HCR)’s 
New Construction Program (NCP) term sheet.  

2 

Can proposals assume up to 17 stories (175') 
with a setback of 105', consistent with R8X? 

See response to Question 1 above.  

3 

Does ESD have a preference regarding the 
proposed unit mix? (e.g., two-three 
bedrooms vs studios designed for seniors) 

As stated in RFP Section IV B, Respondents should 
maximize the number of affordable housing units for 
individuals and families without an age restriction, 
ensuring efficient use of site capacity and available 
financing resources.  
 
Proposals should be financially viable, comply with 
HCR’s NCP term sheet, and include a minimum of 100 
units. Proposals should include a unit mix that provides 
housing units for both individuals and families.  
 

4 

Will proposals with supportive housing units 
receive a scoring advantage?  

No, as stated in RFP Section IV B, Respondents should 
ensure compliance with HCR’s NCP term sheet.  
 
Proposals should not contemplate the use of HCR’s 
Supportive Housing Opportunity Program  (SHOP) or 
SENIOR Term Sheets.  

5 
Is there a required set-aside for homeless 
individuals or households? 

No, HCR’s NCP term sheet does not have a homeless 
set aside requirement.  

https://esd.ny.gov/doing-business-ny/requests-proposals/purchase-and-development-1024-fulton-street-rfp
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6 

Can EPA Greenhouse Reduction Funds be 
used for this project? 

As stated in RFP Section IV B, Respondents should 
ensure compliance with HCR NCP term sheet financing 
and program requirements.  
If additional funds (e.g., from the EPA Greenhouse 
Reduction Fund) are proposed, Respondents should 
identify the source, timing, and their track record of 
securing such funds.   

7 

Will a non-profit joint venture be treated the 
same as a single non-profit entity for scoring 
purposes?  

Yes, a non-profit joint venture consisting of 100% non-
profit ownership will be treated the same as a single 
non-profit entity for scoring purposes.    

8 

Will the proposed project be subject to the 
Uniform Land Use Review Procedure (ULURP) 
and/ or City Environmental Quality Review 
(CEQR), or only New York State 
Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) 
requirements?   

This project will not be subject to ULURP or CEQR. The 
project will be subject to environmental review 
pursuant to SEQRA.  

9 

Should a ULURP action to remove the deed 
restriction be assumed as part of the pre-
development timeline? 
 

No, a ULURP action is not required to lift the deed 
restriction.  
The lifting of the deed restriction will follow the City’s 
required process.  

10 

Will the $3.7 million allocated for demolition 
be available for construction if demolition is 
delayed? 

No, the $3.7 million is specifically designated for 
demolition activities led by the NYS Office of General 
Services (OGS), which will be completed prior to 
closing.  

11 

What is the demolition timeline, and will the 
building be accessible for due diligence 
activities before it is demolished? 

Demolition of the existing building is anticipated to be 
completed prior to closing.  
Coordination for due diligence activities will be 
conducted through ESD and OCFS.  

12 

Is it anticipated that the site would require an 
E-designation or supervision by OER?   
 

No, the site is not expected to require an E-designation 
or OER supervision. The site will be subject to a 
restrictive declaration, which will include any 
environmental controls required for the project. 

13 
Can ESD provide any boring reports, surveys, 
or appraisals?  

ESD cannot provide any existing surveys, boring 
reports, or appraisals.    

14 

Can HPD standards be used for unit design for 
more efficient units and potentially higher 
overall unit count? 

No, Respondents must use HCR standards for unit 
design. 
 

15 

Can ESD provide any additional materials 
from the Community Visioning Workshops 
beyond what is shared in the Community 
Visioning Report?   

No, the Community Visioning Report provides a 
synthesis of the feedback received from participants 
and summarizes key community priorities. 
Respondents are encouraged to refer to this document 
when crafting proposals that respond to community 
needs and development objectives. 

16 

We were looking to partner with or offer our 

GC services to the prospective developers. Is 

this something you could share or advise 

where to find the list? 

This information on prospective developers is not 
available at this point. Subsequent to this Addendum, 
ESD will issue an Addendum with the list of interested 
MWBE and SDVOB firms. 

https://esd.ny.gov/sites/default/files/media/document/Appendix-A-1024-Fulton-St-Community-Visioning-Report.pdf


 

 

 


